
 

Page 1 of 6 
  

CITY OF BUHL PLANNING & ZONING MINUTES 

203 BROADWAY AVE N 

August 27, 2025, SPECIAL MEETINGS 

PRESENT: STAFF: ALSO PRESENT: 

Jeff Gabardi Commission Chair Jazmine Mills P & Z Admin Mike Morales, Applicant 

Bob Vande Water Commission Member   Brian Ratzlaff, Applicant 

Regie Finney Commission Member   Dave Thibault, EHM Engineers 

Reme Pullicar Commission Member   Members of the Public 

 

WORKING SESSION 

OPENING—The meeting was called to order at 10:30 a.m. by Jeff Gabardi, Commission Chair.  

CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM FOR WORKING SESSION: Jazmine confirmed a quorum. Reme Pullicar 

attended via Zoom. 

 

MOTION: Regie moved to amend the agenda as presented. Bob seconded. Voice vote: All in favor. The motion 

passed. 

 

OLD BUSINESS:  

1. Approval of Minutes—July 16, 2025: MOTION: Bob moved to approve the minutes. Regie seconded. A 

duplicate mention of Regie Finney’s name in the present box was noted and requested to be corrected. 

Reme abstained from voting due to absence. Voice vote: All in favor. The motion passed. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Maggie Himmelberger’s Resignation: Jeff suggested contacting previously interested parties and reopening 

applications for P & Z Commission membership, and having Regie sit in the Interview Board. MOTION: 

Reme moved to accept Maggie Himmelberger’s resignation and fill her seat as suggested by Jeff. Bob 

seconded. No discussion. Voice vote: All in favor. The motion passed.  

 

2. Katherine St Right-of-Way Vacation Discussion: Jason Scott noted that Katherine Street was built askew 

compared to the 1946 plat, and when lots 5–8 sold, it showed that about 20 feet of each lot belongs to the 

city due to the road being shifted west. This causes issues with setbacks, and the city does not want the 20 

feet. Jason asked for the Commission’s approval to move to a public hearing to vacate those 20 feet per lot. 

 

MOTION: Regie moved to have the Katherine Street Right-of-Way Vacation go to a public hearing. Bob 

seconded. Reme clarified that the vacating of the 20 feet per lot would go to the property owners, Jason 

confirmed. There was a discussion about the surveying of the area for this proposal. Roll call vote: Regie—

yes, Bob—yes, Jeff—yes, Reme—yes. The motion passed.  

 

3. Staff Report on Zoning Title Code Amendment Ordinance: Airport Zone District: Jazmine reported on the 

proposed changes to the zoning code related to the Airport Zone District. She pointed out a discrepancy 

between the 2014 adopted zoning map and the city code regarding the boundaries of the airport zone 

district, as well as the lack of an Airport Zone column in the “Schedule of Uses” chart. Jazmine explained 

that case law requires uses to be listed there to be permitted, and the proposed amendment aims to establish 

allowable uses that align with the Airport Commission's recommendations and the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

The Commission discussed the airport boundaries, whether allowable uses should also be added to the 

commercial and industrial tables at this time, the role of the Airport Commission in zoning 

recommendations, and whether to proceed now or table the ordinance after the public hearing. 

Commissioners also noted the need to resolve code issues affecting current property owners in the Airport 

Zone and discussed review of the ordinance with legal counsel and the zoning approval process. Reme 

volunteered to provide recommended uses for the commercial and industrial tables. It was agreed to 

proceed with the ordinance as presented and review the commercial and industrial tables separately at a 

future meeting, incorporating Reme’s recommendations and the existing commercial or industrial activities 

in that zone. 

 

4. Staff Report on Zoning Title Code Amendment Ordinance: Animal Grazing: Jazmine reported on proposed 

amendments to Section 9-5-5 regarding animal grazing. The code currently ties grandfathered grazing 



 

Page 2 of 6 
  

rights to a permit, which is waived if not renewed. She noted that many residents were unaware of the 

permitting process and believed they had grandfathered rights. No records of originally issued permits have 

been found, leaving these properties out of compliance. The current code does not provide a way to reissue 

permits, creating challenges for existing property owners, weed control, and new property owners who 

hoped to graze animals. 

 

There was a discussion about the proposed changes, which include the minimum lot size requirement of 

0.9 acres, animal grazing area sizes, allowed animal types, and the permitting process.  

  

5. Staff Report on Morales REZONE Request: Jazmine reported on the rezone request made by Mike 

Morales for his four parcels on Aiken Ave to change from zoned R-4 (Medium-Low Density 

Residential) to R-6 (Medium Density Residential). She noted that he intends to build duplexes and 

has stated such since subdividing the land in 2023. Staff noted that while duplexes are allowed in 

R-4, the minimum lot size for a duplex is 12,000 sq. ft., and the applicant’s lots are approximately 

10,000 sq. ft. The R-6 zone allows duplexes on 8,000 sq. ft. lots, meeting the applicant’s intent. 

The Commission discussed compatibility with surrounding R-4 zoning, neighborhood impacts, 

service provision, and spot zoning concerns. Prior issues on the property, including overgrown 

vegetation and flooding, have been addressed by Code Enforcement. Irrigation maintenance 

remains the responsibility of the property owner. Commissioners also discussed how lot size 

limitations were determined, rezoning decision criteria, and parking considerations. 
 

6. Staff Report on Ratzlaff REZONE Request: Jazmine presented Brian Ratzlaff’s rezone request for a 50.84-

acre parcel (RPB72510066160) to extend the R-6 (Medium Density Residential) zone while retaining the 

portion south of the canal as AG-20 (Agricultural). The applicant annexed the property in 2022. She noted 

concerns regarding increased traffic on Fair Street, hay facility operations, roadway conditions, 

and silage storage. The property currently has a split zone; the proposal would extend R-6 to 30 

acres and retain 20 acres as AG. This rezone is the initial step toward the applicant’s planned 

residential development, which would go through the subdivision process. 

 

The Commission discussed surrounding properties, water rights, and applicability of the new 

subdivision ordinance. 
 

RECESS — Regie moved to recess the meeting until 6:00 p.m.; Bob seconded. Voice vote: All in favor. Meeting 

recessed at 11:58 a.m. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SESSION 

RECONVENE—The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m.  

CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM FOR PUBLIC HEARING(S): Jazmine confirmed a quorum. Reme Pullicar 

attended via Zoom. 

DISCLOSURES—No conflicts of interest or ex parte contact were reported.   

PUBLIC HEARING #1—Jeff invited Jazmine to make a statement.  

Jazmine presented the proposed amendment to Title 9-8-1 to add an Airport Zone column and establish allowable 

uses. Public notice was published in the Times-News on August 9, 2025. The amendment aligns with the 

Comprehensive Plan. She explained that Title 9-6-1(F) references airport boundaries listed in Title 6, which apply 

to city-owned land, while the zoning map includes additional private properties. The current land use chart does 

not have an Airport Zone column to list uses for these private properties. The airport lies within the Area of Impact, 

administered by Twin Falls County, and a resident had been informed at the county level that no uses were listed. 

The provision allowing conditional use permits for unlisted uses is invalid under case law, which requires explicit 

listing of permitted uses; this amendment was therefore presented to the Commission. 

 

Jeff called for written testimony; none was received. 

Jeff called for testimony in support. 



 

Page 3 of 6 
  

• Garret Shriver of Buhl spoke in favor of the amendment, noting that it would allow his family and the 

surrounding neighbors in the Airport Zone to utilize their properties for building homes and other allowable 

uses, which is currently not possible under the existing code. 

 

Jeff called for testimony in opposition or neutral; none was given.  

 

Jeff closed the public hearing #1 at 6:10 p.m. 

 

DISCLOSURES—No conflicts of interest or ex parte contact were reported.   

PUBLIC HEARING #2— Jeff invited Jazmine to make a statement. 

Jazmine presented the proposed amendment to Title 9-5-5 to establish standards for animal keeping and grazing, 

including permitting in residential areas. She explained that the current code stated a grandfathered grazing right 

required a permit, which is waived if a permit is not renewed within two consecutive years. She noted the difficulty 

this causes to current and new residents and staff when it came to animal keeping activities. The proposed changes 

include minimum lot size requirements of 0.9 acres, standards for grazing area sizes, allowed animal types, and the 

permitting process. Jazmine noted that the City Attorney reviewed the proposed ordinance and confirmed it met 

standards. She added that the McCullum area would benefit most of this amendment due to number of parcels of 

0.9 acres or more. 

 

Jeff called for written testimony. There was none.  

Jeff called for testimony in opposition; none was given. 

Jeff called for testimony in support.  

• Brittany Phelps of Buhl spoke in favor of the amendment, noting that she had hoped to keep grazing animals 

on her Poplar property but learned it wasn’t allowed. She stated she’d be happy to complete a permit and 

added that the amendment would support millennials seeking gardens, animals, and community.  

• David McClymonds of Buhl briefly stated he was in favor of the amendment and his property exceeded 

0.9acres.  

Jeff called for neutral testimony. 

• Brant Tennant of Buhl owns property on Milner St and has cattle graze this property seasonally. His 

concerns were about the fees based on acreage and wondered if there would be a maximum size to this 

ordinance.  

 

Jeff closed public hearing #2 at 6:27 p.m. 

 

DISCLOSURES—No conflicts of interest or ex parte contact were reported.   

PUBLIC HEARING #3— Jeff invited the applicant to make a statement. 

Dave Thibault of EHM Engineers, representing Mike Morales, stated that in 2022, Mr. Morales divided 

the property into four parcels and intends to construct duplexes on these parcels. He noted that the R-4 

zoning requires 12,000 sq. ft. per lot, and the parcels are slightly below this threshold, which is why 

they’re applying for a rezone since the parcels are smaller than that. Mr. Thibault highlighted Mr. Morales’ 

experience with this type of development and his goal to facilitate residential housing. He also noted that 

the Comprehensive Plan supports this type of use in the area. 
 

Jeff called for written testimony.  

• Dan Thom of Buhl opposed the proposed rezoning of 923, 929, 935, and 941 Aiken Ave from R-4 (low 

density) to R-6 (medium density). Mr. Thom stated that the area is currently low-density and that the 

proposed change would alter the character and appearance of the neighborhood and increase traffic. 

• Joe and Janice Claire of Buhl are opposed to the proposed rezoning due to safety concerns. They noted the 

narrow width of Aiken Ave with no curbs or sidewalks, existing on-street parking reducing roadway width, 

and heavy pedestrian traffic, including children, dog walkers, and cyclists. They expressed concern that 

increased occupancy and additional vehicles from the rezoning would exacerbate safety risks. Photos 

illustrating problem areas were attached. 

 



 

Page 4 of 6 
  

Jeff called for testimony in opposition. 

• Brant Tennant of Buhl stated that he is not opposed to property owners maximizing the use or profit 

potential of their land; however, he expressed concern about existing traffic congestion along Aiken 

Avenue, noting that many residents own multiple vehicles and are already experiencing difficulty 

navigating the area under the current R-4 zoning. 

 

Jeff called for additional testimony; none was given. 

Jeff invited the applicant to rebut. 

• Dave Thibault addressed the density concerns and highlighted that the comprehensive plan designates the 

area as Urban Residential, which supports higher densities. He added that as far as safety concerns with 

parking, the duplex construction would meet city code standards and match the neighboring housing off-

street parking design. He noted that the congestion is a preexisting condition that shouldn’t preclude Mr. 

Morales from developing the properties as proposed. 

 

Jazmine presented the staff report to the public and noted that the public hearing notice was published in the August 

9th issue of the Times-News, a notice sign was posted on site on August 8th, and affected neighbors were notified 

by mail.  

 

Jeff closed public hearing #3 at 6:49 p.m. 

 

DISCLOSURES—No conflicts of interest or ex parte contact were reported.   

PUBLIC HEARING #4— Jeff invited the applicant to speak. 

Dave Thibault of EHM Engineers, representing Brian Ratzlaff, stated that the property has dual zoning: 

the northern portion is R-6 (Medium Density Residential) and the southern portion is AG-20 

(Agricultural). The intent of the request is to adjust the zoning line to extend the R-6 zone while retaining 

20 acres as AG-20. City utilities can eventually be extended, and future development is anticipated to the 

south and southeast. Thibault noted that the rezone is the first step to align zoning with the applicant’s 

planned development. 

 
Jazmine presented the staff report to the public and noted that the public hearing notice was published in the August 

9th issue of the Times-News, a notice sign was posted on site on August 8th, and affected neighbors were notified 

by mail. She highlighted that rezone approvals are not based on proposed use, rather on alignment with the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Thibault informed the Commission that the applicant would need a period of 12months to relocate the silage 

operation and would like to work with the city, should the rezone be approved.  

 

Jeff called for written or spoken testimony. There was none.  

Jeff closed public hearing #4 at 7:01 p.m. 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM:  

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Review and Consideration of Zoning Code Amendment: Airport Zone District: 

MOTION – Bob moved to recommend approval of the Zoning Code Amendment to amend the City of 

Buhl’s Zoning Code as follows: Title 9, Chapter 8, Section 1—Schedule of Land Uses: add an Airport 

Zoning District column with the allowable uses for that zone, noting that commercial and industrial uses 

will be determined by a future ordinance. Regie seconded. No discussion.  

Roll call vote: Regie—yes, Bob—yes, Jeff—yes, and Reme—yes. Motion passed unanimously.  

The Commission planned to review Reme’s recommendations for those additional uses at the next 

meeting. 



 

Page 5 of 6 
  

2. Review and Consideration of Zoning Code Amendment: Animal Grazing:  

MOTION – Regie moved to recommend approval of the Zoning Code Amendment to amend the City of 

Buhl’s Zoning Code as follows: Title 9, Chapter 5, Section 5—Nonconforming Uses and Structures, 

establishing standards for animal keeping or grazing on properties of at least 0.9 acres in size. Bob 

seconded. There was a discussion about whether to add a maximum size requirement and flat fee. 

After discussion, Reme requested that the motion be amended to include the Commission’s 

findings supporting approval, including: compliance with notice procedures under Idaho Code 

§67-6511; confirmation that the application meets applicable requirements; and consistency with 

the overall planning goals and objectives outlined in the Comprehensive Plan. Regie agreed to 

amend the motion, which was seconded by Bob. 

Roll call vote: Reme—yes, Regie—yes, Bob—yes, and Jeff—yes. Motion passed unanimously.  

3. Review and Consideration of Morales REZONE Request: 

MOTION - Reme moved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL of the City of Buhl Zoning Map amendment 

as requested by Michael (Mike) Morales for properties located at 923, 929, 935, and 941 Aiken Ave, 

Buhl, ID 83316, from R-4 Medium-Low Density Residential to R-6 Medium Density Residential. 

Approval is supported by the following findings: 

1. The proper notice procedures were followed per Idaho Code section 67-6511. 

2. The application meets zoning requirements. 

3. The request aligns with the Comprehensive Plan and will not negatively impact local 

service delivery. 

4. Pg 5 of staff report, significant parking available that is not in roadway that is owned by 

the city and has been ignored by existing residents.  

 

Regie seconded and asked about Aiken Avenue improvements. Jason stated there are no current plans; 

future development may include curb, gutter, and sidewalk. Regie noted he wanted to address parking 

concerns for both the applicant and residents. 

 

Jeff opposed the rezone, citing an R-6 “island” within R-4 zoning would be incompatible with surrounding 

properties. Reme noted the Comprehensive Plan supports future growth. 

 

Roll call vote: Regie—no; Bob—no; Jeff—no; Reme—no. Motion failed. 

 

Jazmine stated that the applicant’s alternatives include appealing to City Council or pursuing a lot line 

adjustment to accommodate some of the proposed development design. 

 

4. Review and Consideration of Ratzlaff REZONE Request:  

MOTION – Bob moved to RECOMMEND APPROVAL of the City of Buhl Zoning Map amendment as 

requested by Brian Ratzlaff for parcel RPB72510066160 to extend the R 6 Medium Density area and 

retain the portion south of the canal as AG 20 Agricultural. 

Approval is supported by the following findings: 

 1. The proper notice procedures were followed per Idaho Code section 67-6511. 

 2. The application meets zoning requirements. 

 3. The request aligns with the Comprehensive Plan and will not negatively impact local  

service delivery. 

Regie seconded. The Commission verified that the 20-acre requirement for AG-20 is met and staff will 

monitor the silage pit operations.  

 

Roll call vote: Reme—yes, Jeff—yes, Bob—yes, and Regie—yes. Motion passed. 



 

Page 6 of 6 
  

COMMISSION COMMENTS — Jazmine informed the Commission about an AOI subdivision 

application in the Industrial zone, owned by Krumm, scheduled for September 9th and 11th. She noted 

that the application is related to the previously discussed Nutrien Ag zoning amendment. 

 

Reme thanked Jazmine for the motion wording for clarity on the record.  

 

Bob requested trainings for new and current Commission members.  
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS — There were none.  

 

MEETING ADJOURNED — Reme moved to adjourn the meeting. Regie seconded. Voice Vote: All voted in 

favor. The motion passed. Meeting adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 

 


